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Structure Governance and Management 

Governing document 

The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation Company Number 03059425 (the Foundation) is a company 
limited by guarantee governed by its Memorandum and Artieles of Association last amended 31 st 
January 2011. The company is registered as a charity with both the Charity Commission in England 
and Wales (1046854) and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator (SC037596). 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in 
note 1 and comply with the Charity's Memorandum and Artieles of Association, the Companies Act 
2006 and "Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice Applicable 
to Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (effective 1st January 2015)" 

The Accounts have departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to 
the extent required to provide a true and fair view. This departure has involved following the 
Statement of Recommended Practice for Charities applying to FRS102 rather than the version of 
Statement of Recommended Practice which is referred to in the Regulations but which has since 
been withdrawn. 

Appointment of trustees 

The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation (RCLCF) recognises that an effective board of trustees is 
essential if the charity is to succeed in achieving its objectives. The board must seek to be 
representative of the people with whom the charity works and must have available to it all of the 
knowledge and skills required to run the charity. Individual trustees must have sufficient knowledge, 
both of trusteeship in general and of the Foundation's activities, to enable them to carry out their role 
and to represent the charity at meetings and other events. 

Using a balance of skills and geography, trustee vacancies should be advertised; however, 
existing trustees and employees are encouraged to put forward names for consideration. The 
potential trustee will complete a skill matrix and have an induction period of three months before 
formal appointment by members by ordinary resolution. 

Trustees will serve for a three-year period before being eligible for re-election. Unless there are 
specific and special circumstances no trustee shall serve for more than two consecutive periods. The 
Chair and deputy Chair shall stand for re-election at each annual meeting. A trustee will be appointed 
to liaise with the Finance Director to discuss financial issues and be responsible for advising the 
Board of Trustees on financial matters. The charity has an indemnity provision in place for directors. 

Key management personnel include the senior management team. Remuneration in relation to key 
management is benchmarked against comparable roles and organisations and then authorised by the 
board of trustees. 

Trustee induction and training 

All potential trustees receive an introductory pack about the Foundation and the duties and 
responsibilities of a trustee. They will also have an induction program which will inelude visiting 
Foundation sites and meeting staff in all the core areas of work. An existing trustee will be 
appointed as a mentor to assist the potential trustee during the introductory period. 

Organisation 

The board of trustees administers the Foundation and comprises of eleven members that meet four 
times a year. The board has established four formally constituted committees, each with specific 
terms of reference and functions; Audit, Employment, Grants and Nominations. The final decision on 
all matters remains with the board. 
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The Finance and Audit Committee supports the Chief Executive and the Finance Director in preparing 
for the annual financial statements audit. 

The Employment Committee is responsible for approval of pay and conditions of staff and Chief 
Executive and resolution on health and safety issues. 

The Scientific Grants Committee is responsible for considering all applications for grants and 
making recommendations to the Board. The committee also monitors the performance of all external 
research activities and reports to the Board. 

The Nominations Committee is responsible for the recruitment and training of new trustees; 
this is convened ad hoc rather than as a formal committee. A Chief Executive is appointed 
by the trustees to be responsible for the executive management and its day to day direction 
in line with the strategic plan. 

Grant making policy 

The Foundation's mission is to beat lung cancer by funding innovative world-class research. Our aim 
through research into Early Detection and Patient Experience is to make a significant 
impact on lung cancer for the benefit of patients. 

Scientific excellence and relevance to lung cancer are the key principles which will guide the 
Foundation's research. 

The Foundation is a member of the Association of Medical Research Charities (AMRC), a 
membership organisation of the leading medical and health research charities in the UK. 

The Foundation's key research objectives are: 

• to build the talent pool in lung cancer research of the highest quality, in the UK and the Republic of 
Ireland 

• to encourage scientific innovation 

• to make every effort to engage in scientific and public dialogue and encourage scientists to 
communicate and collaborate with each other and ensure that the results are disseminated 
in an easy format to the general public 

• to ensure that research translates into benefits for patients as quickly and effectively as 
possible. 

Awards are provided for pilot grants and project grants in universities, medical schools/teaching 
hospitals and research institutes within the UK and Ireland. 

Grants will be made in support of the research project including salaries, minor equipment and 
consumables costs. The Foundation will not directly employ staff on grants awarded for research 
projects. 

The Foundation will only undertake the funding of research that has been peer reviewed through its 
Grants Committee process. Details of how to apply for grants and scholarships, together with the 
relevant forms, are available by contacting our registered principal office. 

Related parties 

The charity has four wholly owned subsidiaries: Roy Castle Retail Ltd (03604677), Roy Castle Trading 
Ltd (03909935), Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd (05748774) and Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd (06149309) 
(formerly known as Roy Castle Patient Care Ltd). 
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Roy Castle Retail Ltd was established on 27 July 1998 to operate as a trading retail company in 
orderto raise funds for charitable purposes. The company result for the year was a profit of £144,439 
before Gift Aiding profits to the charity (2015: £82,375) and the company made a gift aid payment of 
£171,553 to the charity (2015: £11,242). 

Roy Castle Trading Ltd was established on 19 January 2000 to operate as a trading promotional 
company in order to raise funds for charitable purposes. The company result for the year was a 
£92,273 profit (2015: £172,773 profit) before a gift aid payment to the Charity of £92,273 (2015: 
£141,536). 

Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd was established on 20 March 2006 to operate as a trading smoking cessation 
service provider company under the brand 'Roy Castle Fag Ends'. The company result for the year 
was a loss of £18,573 (2015: loss of £56,776). 

Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd was established on 9 March 2007 to operate as a trading lung cancer 
support company in order to raise funds for a new patient support centre of excellence. An 
application for charitable status was made on 28th May 2008 with the Charities Commission; the 
application was successful, with Roy Castle Patient Support becoming a registered charity on 28th 
July 2008. The charity result for the year was a deficit of £22 (2015: deficit £nil). 

Risk management 

The trustees have a risk management strategy to assess business risks and to mitigate those risks. 
The strategy comprises: 

• a quarterly review of risks the Charity may face, prioritising them in terms of potential impact and 
likelihood of occurrence and 

• systems and procedures to mitigate those risks identified in the plan and to minimise the 
potential impact on the Charity. 

The trustees have identified the principal risks to the charity are a significant decrease in income 
through reduced legacies and public fundraising and the cancellation of contracts with PCTs. We 
believe that these business risks would be effectively managed by restructuring existing resources 
and maintaining appropriate accessible cash reserves. 

Objectives and activities 

Charity objects 

The objects of the Foundation are to: 

- promote and fund research into the causes, prevention and treatment of lung cancer 
- develop and support health promotion programmes designed to prevent the onset of lung cancer - - 

provide amenities intended to improve the quality of life of the patients and their relatives 

Charity aims and objectives 

What our organisation is aboul: 

Beating Britain's biggest cancer killer - giving 'help and hope' to people affected by lung cancer. 

The idea that drives us: 

The charity has a dual focus: 

1. Saving lives 
2. Supporting people living with lung cancer 
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How do we achieve our aims? 

1. Saving lives 

• Funding research 

• Prevention - helping people to quit smoking & encouraging young people not to start smoking 

• Campaigning for better outcomes for lung cancer patients 

• Raising awareness of the importance of early diagnosis 

2. Supporting people living with lung cancer 

• Providing information materials to the NHS 

• Running lung cancer support groups across the UK 

• Supporting nurses 

• Providing patient relief grants 

• Offering telephone and online support 

Public Benefit 
The trustees confirm that they have paid due regard to the public benefit guidance published by the 
Charity Commission and Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator. The Foundation refers to the public 
benefit guidance when reviewing and setting its aims and objectives and in future planning. 

The charity's main activities undertaken for the public benefit: 

Research and Best Practice 

Our core purpose is to ensure better outcomes for patients with lung cancer in the future, their best 
chance of survival, and the best possible patient experience. 

We promote and fund research by: 

• Increasing the spread of grant funding across the UK and maintaining a first class and innovative 
open grants policy. 

• Increasing the overall lung cancer research spend. Currently lung cancer research funding from 
government and other charities is around 5%. Our aim is to see this increase to 10% 
in the next five years. 

• Ensuring best practice and earlier diagnosis in lung cancer. While we are starting to see a 
significant improvement in the one-year survival rate for lung cancer, it remains the worst 
of the "big four" cancers. Only 36.7% of lung cancer patients are still alive one year post 
diagnosis, compared to 96% of people with breast cancer, 93% of people with prostate cancer 
and 72% of people with bowel cancer. Over the next five years we aim to see a significant 
increase in one-year survival rates and a more consistent treatment rate for lung cancer patients 
across the UK. 

Lung Cancer Information and Support Services 

The Glasgow-based Lung Cancer Information and Support Services provides: 

• Patient relief grants with a potential increase in funding from £10,000 to £100,000 in the next five 
years, across the UK (supporting up to 400 people with lung cancer 
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• Support to more than 52 lung cancer support groups as well as offering training for up to 30 
group facilitators per year 

• Lung cancer information direct to people affected by lung cancer and to the NHS. 

The Foundation in 2016 

Following our 2015 Silver Jubilee celebrations, last year saw the charity re-focus its strategies with a 
fresh emphasis on prevention, early detection and awareness of lung cancer. 

In January 2016, our incoming Chairman, Max Steinberg CBE, fully assumed his new role and 
respons ibilities. 

Having merged during 2015 with another charity, The Deborah Hutton Campaign (DHC), we began the 
process of re-defining its role within the overall Foundation. Central to the work started by the DHC is 
the Cut Films Project, a youth film and social media initiative designed to educate and engage with 
young people about the harm caused by smoking. 
During 2016, the Cut Films Project evolved into our overall Education and Prevention Directorate. 

We are committed to setting ourselves ambitious but realistic targets for growth and improvement. 

Research 

Despite being the biggest killer, lung cancer receives only 6% of current cancer research funding but the 
charity aims to significantly boost this over the next decade. 

Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation has a long history of basic science funding in lung cancer, 
having funded the Liverpool Lung Project at the University of Liverpool for several years. Following 
approval of a new Research Strategy, the charity introduced an open grant award process with formal 
peer review in 2012. 

Opening up research funding within the UK and Ireland significantly impacts on RCLCF 
and its profile nationally, placing it at the centre of lung cancer research. The research 
projects the charity funds concentrate on either the early detection of lung cancer or 
improving the experiences of patients. 

In 2016 the charity announced it was funding a further four projects at University College London over 
the next two years, as well as ongoing support for both the Liverpool Lung Project at the University of 
Liverpool and a Clinical Research Fellowship at the University of Nottingham. 

The four additional projects are: 

• £118,289 - Principle Investigators Dr Jo Waller and Dr Samantha Quaife will look at the 
experience of patients enrolled in a 'real world' lung cancer screening service, to inform the way 
screening is delivered and communicated, to manage stress associated with abnormal results 
that require surveillance and to motivate positive behaviour change. The findings will form the 
detailed content and design of an online training module for health professionals delivering lung 
cancer screening. 

• £112,521 - Principle Investigator Dr Georgia Black will look at safety netting and re-consultation 
for lung cancer symptoms to see how the current strategies of safety netting are implemented in 
General Practice, with regard to patients who present with common lung symptoms with low 
predictive value, and to identify any unintended negative effects of safety netting, from the 
perspectives of both doctor and patient. 

• £139,905 - Principle Investigator Mr Robert Hynds aims to establish how cells grown from pre 
invasive lesion biopsies differ from those grown from healthy airway biopsies with a view to 
developing therapies that target pre-invasive cells but allow healthy cells to survive. 
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£ 139,599 - Principle Investigator Prof Sam Janes wili research the possibility of developing a 
simple and statistically robust method for general population screening for lung cancer 
using only a mouth swab from the patient. The primary aim of the research is to enable a 
method whereby patients could test their own mouth swabs on smali machine in a pharmacy, 

The two continuing projects supported by Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation are: 

• The Liverpool Lung Project. 

As mentioned earlier, the Charity has funded the Liverpool Lung Project - a risk model - at the 
University of Liverpool for several years and stili continues to do so, This work is an 
important step towards GPs being able to offer screening to those with a higher risk of lung 
cancer in the near future, 

• University of Nottingham Clinical Research Fellowship 

The Charity agreed to part-fund Clinical Research Fellow Dr Gavin Jones at the University of 
Nottingham, to assist with his study, "The Use of Chemotherapy in People with Lung Cancer 
An Analysis of the National Lung Cancer Audit and the Systemic Anti-Cancer Therapy 
Dataset", 
Funding to the value of £80,000 per year has been agreed for 36 months, starting from 
January 2016, 

Lung Cancer Prevention through tobacco control 

The Foundation has long campaigned against the adverse impact on public health of tobacco 
products, It has also supported smokers throughout their attempts to quit the habil. This has involved: 

• Working collaboratively in the field of tobacco control, campaigning and lobbying alongside local, 
regional and national organisations including Liverpool CCG, Tobacco Free Futures, 
ASH Wales and Public Health England, to smoke-free cars and plain packaging on tobacco 
products, 

• Delivering training to public-facing professionals including North West Dental Deanery, 
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service, The Society and College of Radiographers, and Edge Hill 
University nursing degree students, 

The charity's FagEnds service has been providing smoking-cessation support to the people of 
Merseyside since June 1994, helping thousands of people to become smoke- free, In 2015 Liverpool 
City Council invited tenders for the service contract, which was ultimately awarded to a national service 
provider. FagEnds' contract with the City Council ended in July 2016. 

Quit Support is our free interactive online stop-smoking community. Quit Support offers those who 
need it a full range of hints, tips and advice on stopping smoking or reducing their nicotine intake. 

Our trained stop-smoking advisors use tailored support packages to make the cessation process as 
convenient as possible. Members trying to stop smoking are offered a full range of hints and advice 
and they can chat with others going through the same experience. 

By December 2016, Quit Support had more than 5,000 registered members. Over 500 of these 
members were regularly posting online each month and interacting with each other. Although a 
member would need to register to interact, analysis shows that, on a monthly basis, an average of 
40,000 individuals accessed the forum. 

Quit Support will always encourage users to access help and support from their local stop-smoking 
services, which can make it four times more likely that they remain smoke-free. The forum also 
supports clients of local stop-smoking services outside normal working hours. 
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The Lung Cancer Prevention directorate also delivered bespoke training (around £3,500 +VAT per 
organisation) including 'Smoking Cessation & Mental Health to public-facing professionals including 
Cygnet Health and Mersey Care. 

At the 47th Union World Conference on Lung Health & Tuberculosis, held in Liverpool in October2016, 
the Charity chaired several sessions with keynote speakers. Our information booth at this event 
provided thousands of visitors with information material on early signs and symptoms of lung cancer, 
while our giant inflatable MEGA Lungs display attracted worldwide attention. 

Melody Holt of the Prevention Directorate also co-authored a paper, 'Smoke-free hospital site 
conversations: how nurses can initiate change', which appeared in the British Journal of Nursing. 

Education and Prevention 

The Cut Films Project now forms the core of the charity's Education and Prevention youth charity. It 
engages young people to consider the issue of smoking through interactive film-making workshops 
made in schools and youth centres. The main aim is to help young people persuade their friends and 
peers not to take up smoking. 

Young people collaborate to write, direct and produce short films, which they then share via social 
media. The process is supported at a local level within schools and community youth groups through a 
series of workshops and assemblies, and online through free interactive and downloadable resources. 

The strategic objectives of Cut Films are two-fold: to educate young people about tobacco and 
smoking to support them to make healthy life choices; and to increase participation by young people 
and education professionals in the annual National Cut Films Competition. 

Initially, the charity is focusing on expanding in three key geographical locations: London, Liverpool I 
and the North West, and Glasgow. 

As the young people we engage with are mainly students attending school or college, our activities take 
place in the course of the academic year. Thus, between September 2015 and July 2016 we 
accomplished the following: 

Films made - 420 

Young people involved directly - 3650 

Schools worked with - 59 

Youth organisations worked with - 16 

Number of workshops - 385 

Partnerships - 6 

101,950 views on YouTube in 2016, up 39% from 2015 

Key Achievements in competition year 2015-2016 included: 

Merger with Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Held National Cut Films Awards ceremony at SAFT A HQ in July 2016, and also two local awards 
ceremonies in Liverpool and Richmond 
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Compleled an Erasmus Plus project 'EU Smokefree Youth Network' in partnership with youth 
organisations in Sweden and Slovenia 

Completed the Cancer Research UK feasibility study 

Awarded funding to deliver an Isle of Man Cut Films in the academic year 2017/2018 

Received commission to deliver a pilot on shisha awareness in Barnet 

Looking ahead, the charity aims to develop a longer-term strategy for Cut Films, while continuing to grow 
participation in the competition, developing its reach within Europe and diversifying its income streams. 

Lung Cancer Information and Support Services 

Early diagnosis is vital to ensure that curative treatment is possible and to improve clinical 
outcomes. We have seen progress with a number of screening projects and the impact of repeated 
public awareness campaigns on signs and symptoms. Data for England for 2015 has improved with 
37% of people being diagnosed when their lung cancer is treatable and potentially curable. 

Support through diagnosis and treatment 

1-1 Support 

In 2016 we redesigned and marketed our online and phone-based support. We introduced a new 
team of sessional nurses to ensure our support reflects clinical practice and guidelines. This 
increased email, helpline and online support requests to 283 per month. The services are used by 
those with a diagnosis, those concerned about symptoms and carers. We carried out an audit of the 
service and found that the four key issues were: emotional and psychological support, information 
on lung cancer, local support groups and addressing financial issues. 

In the course of the year our online forum, a community for those affected by lung cancer, grew from 
1,598 to 2,113 members. The number of actíve users posting each month grew by 20%. 

Financial Support 

Since 2012 we have offered one-off grants to those with lung cancer whose ability to manage day to 
day costs and bills has deteriorated due to their cancer. In 2016 we supported 462 (2015: 378) people 
with grants, distributing a total of £75,572 (2015: £58,333). We were supported by an additional stream 
of funding from Principal Law, relating to people who may have had exposure to industrial risks factors 
relating lo lung cancer. 

Approximately 300 Specialist Nurses, MacMillan Advisors and Palliative Care Specialists were involved 
in supporting patients in receiving this funding. 

"Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundalion has been very helpful to me. It's laken away a lot of stress & 
worries I've had by talking to people in the same situation. A big thank you, the grant has helped me 
towards being & feeling human again." Patient - Tiverton, Devon. 

"Thank you so much for the grant, it certainly took some pressure off. The welfare rights advisor 
actually applied for us and we were very grateful." Patient - Neath, Wales. 

Face to face support 

Building on the launch in 2015 of our face-to-face 'Information Days', events took place in Glasgow, 
Belfast, Inverness, Portsmouth, Kent, Liverpool, Manchester and Coventry. These events were 
attended by 181 participants, 143 patients and carers and 38 health care and allied professionals. 
The nature of our client group means that their state of health affects attendance; as a result, 25% 
of those who sign up to attend are unable to attend, but all receive support and sign-posting to the 
charity's services. 
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These 'Information Days' are designed to help people affected by lung cancer share information; 
hear the latest updates on treatment and gain support from others who have similar experiences. 
The three key reasons for attendance were: learning more about lung cancer, the opportunity to meet 
other people interested in lung cancer and gathering information, specific to the patient or their carer. 

A satisfaction evaluation revealed that 75.2% of participants considered the event met their expectations 
within the top two quintiIes (43.5% said it completely met their expectations). 

"It was great to meet other patients, nurses and to find out what happens locally, support-wise for both 
patients and families." Attendee - Portsmouth Information Day. 

"Excellent and well organised." - Coventry attendee 
"A great day, very relaxed, full of information and support. I wish these were held twice a year." 
Attendee - Glasgow 

Our face to face support continues to rely on a growing network of facilitated groups running across the 
UK. By the end of 2016 we had 54 groups and a further three in development. These groups provide 
regular contact and support to those going through treatment and adjusting to diagnosis. We provided 
training for an additional 14 facilitators during the year. 

informing and educating patients, carers and others 

Written information 

We achieved more modest growth in our written material than we had hoped. We increased our 
circulation of treatment related products to 32,562. With our bi-annual magazine, Inspire, this means we 
distributed more than one item of information for everyone person diagnosed with lung cancer in the 
course of the year. We introduced a new Travel and Lung Cancer booklet, with 1,057 requests for copies 
in its first three months. Our core 'Answering Your Questions' pack was updated, with continued 
sponsorship from Astra Zeneca and Lily. We launched new products on small cell. brain metastases and, 
following consultation with our Reader and Expert Panels, we refreshed our Targeted Therapy booklet 
and Surgery resource. Orders were placed by 715 health care professionals, Cancer Information Centres 
and voluntary organisations. 

Expanding our online presence 

Our online materials were downloaded on average 1,322 times per month. 

This year we launched our first social media footage of patients via our website and YouTube 
channel. 

Our films with Joanna Marshall, a young patient with stage 4 disease, Craig Bryden, undergoing 
chemotherapy for small cell lung cancer and Brian Gemmell, recovering from lung surgery have 
attracted hundreds of viewers. This provides a new medium for us to reach those living with lung 
cancer and a fresh way to explain the importance of our work to our supporters. 

Encouraging early diagnosis 

Awareness and Early Detection 

In 2016 we continued to build our profile and impact on awareness and early detection. During the year 
we participated in the 'Be Clear on Cancer' cough campaign in England. 'Detect Cancer Early' cough 
campaign in Scotland and also the newly launched 'Be Clear on Cancer' cough campaign in Wales. 

Links were made with a new patient pathway project in Wales aiming to improve support and patient 
fitness for and post treatment. 

Over the course of the year 11,907 pieces of awareness information were distributed. 35 of our Patient 
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Advocates were involved in community-based awareness raising events, reaching 1,550 members of 
the public with 'signs and symptoms' materials. 

Lung Cancer Awareness Month 

During Lung Cancer Awareness Month 269 tailored awareness packs were distributed to support 
community awareness events lead by Nurses, Occupational Health. Twelve community outreach 
events were held by our volunteers and staff reaching 600 people. 

We participated in an event in Westminster Parliament designed to engage politicians in 
awareness about support and services. Our Patient Advocate, Katie Cohen, relayed her 
extraordinary story to those present and later on an online blog. 

We provided patient experience based submissions for three new medicines being considered by the 
Scottish Medicines Consortium, all of which had positive decisions to provide access. We had contact 
from 77 new Advocates and engaged 53 in written and verbal feedback on many aspects of lung 
cancer treatment and experience. 

Working with the lung Cancer Community 

This year we supported the Scottish Lung Cancer Nurse Forum in running their first education meeting 
for health care professionals. More than 80 delegates attended and the event was a showcase for our 
services. 

We continued to play an active role in the UK Lung Cancer Coalition, contributing to the development of 
the '25 by 2025' report. 

Submissions based on patient experience were made for four medicines being considered by the 
Scottish Medicines Consortium, all of which were successful. We recruited an additional 77 advocates 
and consulted, either verbally or in written form, with 53 patient I carer advocates during the course of 
the year. 

Fundraising 

Income Generation 

The Fundraising team enjoyed a successful year, raising £1 ,852k (2015: £2,500k) with growth in donors, 
retention rate and event participants. Certain areas of our work will need further development, 
particularly in the private sector but there are strong grounds for increased optimism. Our overall 
supporter numbers have increased and our retention rate has increased from 26% to 37%, indicating a 
significant uplift in customer care. 

Public Fundraising 

Community fundraising finished 30% ahead of its target, raising over £200,000 (2015: £155,906) for the 
first time in what was a year of rapid growth. This included the creation of new initiatives, including 
The Enterprise Competition. We have welcomed eight schools on board this year and secured 
sponsorship for the competition from Enterprise Rent a Car and Liverpool City Council. 

The November Swim the Distance campaign received 151 sign-ups and raised over £6,000, a 
significantly higher figure than previous years, and The Wirral Walk reached its target of 122 walkers 
and raised an impressive £10,000 which compares favourably with 2015 when we had 80 walkers and 
raised under £8,000. 

Running events raised 25% more than predicted for 2016, securing £267,790 (2015: £250,171). The 
Sporting Events team has recruited over 800 supporters to take part in various runs, cycles and other 
challenge events. We have also built new partnerships with Time Outdoors, RunBritain and Get Event 
Fit, all looking at marketing and promoting the Roy Caslle brand as well as providing a tailored service 
for all of our supporters. We launched exclusive 'extreme gifts' online, selling abseil, skydive and zip wire 
events places in order to attract more people to support the charity. 
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Our events programme also produced record figures, raising over £100,000 (2015: £99,815) for the first 
time. 

We expanded to two Spooky Welly Walks, both proving successful. Our Liverpool event in Sefton Park 
attracted our highest-ever number of visitors, and our first venture at Sherdley Park in St Helens was 
also well-attended. We had 8,699 visitors across both events and raised over £65,000. The Spooky 
Welly Walk events also received wider recognition, being nominated as a finalist in Best Fundraising 
Event in the National Third Sector Excellence Awards. 

Private Fundraising 

Corporate fundraising remains the main area of opportunity for the Direclorate. A new team was 
recruited lo focus on new business, with a particular emphasis on supporting new projects in the field of 
early delection of lung cancer. 
We received £40,000 from Prospect Law to fund patienl grants, wilh an ongoing pledge lo continue lo do 
so. We also continued our work with Barclays and Coca-Cola, both bringing in over £15,000 each. 

We secured support from seven new Trust funders for 2016 and re-activated four lapsed trust supporters 
who have not given lo us in the past three years. This activity included developing new proposals for 
Patient Information Days and ways lo support the mobile Lung Health Check programme in Nottingham 
in 2017. 

Joint funding was received for a new Cut Films project in Richmond. Cut Films secured its first trusts 
income from multiple sources across the UK, with funding in place for several years ahead. For the first 
time, we also secured funding from lhe Isle of Man Anti-Cancer Association for both Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation research and Cut Films. 

Legacies continue to be our largest fundraising area and we received £526,459 (2015: £1,203,637) 
against a targel of £420,000 with several more in progress for 2017. We launched a successful 'Wills in 
the Workplace' project and 'Free Wills' scheme, which have enjoyed an exceptional take-up rate. The 
Free Will scheme has received strong positive feedback from many of those taking part in our Patient 
Information Days and Patient Support Groups. 

Individual Giving/ln Memorial Fundraising 

We have a new team in place bringing a range of experience, all aiming to deliver key emaU and direct 
mail fundraising campaigns in the near future. We were delighted to achieve target in all areas of 
individual giving, including regular gifts through direct debits and payroll giving. We are also proud to 
have organised the 'Celebrate a Life' event and online campaign which attracled over 300 guests on the 
day. We have also exceeded income from the same campaign compared with 2015 figures. Nolably, we 
received a donation of £30,000 from one supporter in memory of her husband and the support the 
charity gave her ten years ago. 

Retail 

Retail saw a year of growth from previous years and the opening of another new store in Ormskirk. 
Overall cumulative profit for 2016 was £144k against the previous year's £82k and a result of income 
recorded of £1 ,888,680. We received Gift Aid payments of £171 ,553, with over 20% of all donated goods 
eligible for Gift Aid. Furniture stores fared particularly well, producing £459,438 in profit compared to 
£370,340 in 2015. 

As our new Ormskirk store has performed well, we have extended the lease further to ten years and feel 
confident of further growth and success. 

We have developed an opportunity for a new furniture store, our seventeenth store in total, in Warrington, 
with an initial 12-month lease. This will allow us to increase the operational movement of the vans 
between the Wilmslow, Cheadle and Warrington stores within Cheshire and test the site before any 
potential extension of a lease. 
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Changes have been made to the Warehouse operations in order to reduce costs from the operation and 
increase efficiency. We have three vans which are operating at full capacity and all drivers have passed 
their advanced driving qualification. The changes in staff in the Warehouse and Buying has contributed 
to approximately £40k of savings in the department for 2017. 

Having revised and refined our online and postal campaigns, the Christmas Brochure received 251 
orders, valued at c£5k while £3,626 was taken across November and December online. 

Volunteers 

The Charity has significant support from volunteers in all our activities. Following an extensive review 
of the number of volunteers registered with us, we now have a pool of 511 'active' volunteers who 
regularly support our shops, administration and fundraising activities. Of these, currently 314 
volunteers support our shop managers across the Merseyside and Cheshire area. 

During 2016 we formed partnerships with several external organisations, raising the profile of the 
charity as well as tapping new potential volunteers. These partners include Learn Direct, The Red 
Cross, Probation Service, The Works Company, the DWP and Tomorrow's People. For a second 
year, we have offered our volunteers the opportunity to achieve free qualifications in customer 
service, retail and leadership through Derby College. So far we have had 25 volunteers successfully 
complete some form of formal training. 

In total, we estimate that our volunteers contribute more than fifty thousand hours of their time per year, 
which is worth approximately £400,000. 

Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation is also represented on several Volunteer Forums across 
Merseyside. Our presence on these helps to raise awareness of the work done by the charity and also 
helps to ensure observance and promotion of best practice in volunteer engagement. 

The Charity has significant support from volunteers in all our activities. Following an extensive review of 
the number now registered with the charity, we have a pool of 511 'active' volunteers who regularly 
support our shops, smoking cessation service, administration and fundraising activities. We have 
recruited 156 new volunteers since July 2015. 

Financial Review 

Summary 

2016 is the third year of a revised 5 year strategy 2013 - 2018, a new 3 year strategic plan has been 
developed 2018 - 2020, the results for 2016 are:- 

The Charity, as a group, made a deficit during 2016 of £424,230 (2015: profit of £498,531 l. This is due to 
a decrease in income levels in a difficult economic environment, whilst maintaining a determination to 
deliver on our charitable objectives on a consistent basis. Thus, we have maintained our charitable 
spend while seeking longer term gains and objectives. 

Following the appointment of a new CEO during 2011 a review of the Charity's activities, strategy and 
impact was undertaken which resulted in the development of a revised five-year strategy that 
commenced in 2013. 

There are two main business themes central to the success of the strategy that began in 2013: 

• To increase the level of charitable activity we fund 

• To achieve a national profile by increased regional activity, becoming genuinely local across the 
country 
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The themes are linked and each theme runs through each of the charity's key activities, influencing our 
Research, Support and Prevention Strategies; they are also reflected in our Income Generation Strategy 
and Communications Strategy and In directing how our corporate structure will provide a solid foundation 
for the chanty to buuo on 
Full details of the current Strategic Plan 2013 to 2018 can be found on our website www.roycastle.org. 

Charitable expenditure 

Total charitable expenditure for 2016 was £2,743k (2015: £2,l40k) 

Prevention expenditure Increased by 10% to £964k In 2016 (2015. £873k) despite the cessation of Ihe 
stop smoking services, due to the work undertaken via the Cut Film Project, an innovative youth 
programme delivered by the chanty to highlight the dangers of smoking and tobacco 

Research expenditure was £1 ,235k In 2016 (£1, 132k in 2015), with chantable research grants of £548k 
(2015. £532k) 

Funding will be made to four additional projects, plus continuing distnbutions to the University of 
Liverpool (Liverpool Lung Project) and to support a Clinical Research Fellowship at the University of 
Nottingham 

Income and funding 

Total for the chanty reduced by 16% to £4,796k (2015, £5,644k) due In main lo a reduction In donations 
and legacy Income. Legacy Income In 2016 was £526k (2015: £ 1 ,204k) which follows a particularly good 
couple of years In 2014 and 2015 for legacy Income. Other voluntary donations fell slightly to £424k from 
£470k In 2015, however In memonam donations grew to £190k form £154k and this type of personal, 
individual support remains a key Income stream 

Sponsorship Income Increased In 2016 to £326k from £290k 

Gift aid on donations remained fairly stable as £92k (2015, £98k) 

Retail performed well with a gross profit of £1 ,lOOk (2015 £1.504) This was dnven by strong sales from 
our shops In Heswall, Chester and Moreton, as well as furniture retail outlets in Chester, Srruthdown 
Road and Crosby We also opened our latest shop, an upmarket outlet in Wilmslow, Cheshire 

The traditional high street chanty outlets have performed better than 2015 despite difficult trading 
conditions and generated an overall profit of £ 144k (2015 £82k). 

Income from Chantable activities fell significantly to £431 k from 678k m 2015, this was due to the end of 
the smoking cessation services we provided to Liverpool City Councrl 

Investments 

The Foundation holds £1 ,259k in listed Investments that generated an income of £1 09k In the year 
(2015' £115k). In the year there was a gain of £120k (2015 £1 k) 
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Rathbones an independent stockbroker manages the Investments within defined areas. The 
stockbrokers have been Instructed not to invest In tobacco related companies and other socially 
unacceptable companies The current investment policy of the trustees IS to hold a large proportion of 
surplus assets of the Foundation In cash and near cash to ensure a stable platform for the 
organisation s continued activities 

Reserves 

The trustees have adopted a reserves policy which they consider approprrate to ensure the continued 
ability of the Foundation to meet its objectives. 

During the year the trustees reviewed the reserves policy which concluded that to allow the Foundation 
to be managed efficiently a general reserve, excluding investments and tangible fixed assets, equivalent 
to approximately one year's unrestricted non-trading expenditure IS required together with the financial 
commitments not accrued in the financial statements. 

As at 31 December 2016 the actual reserves less tangible fixed assets are over £1 ,917k which IS over 
the calculated policy level of reserves of £1.9mililon. The listed Investments and cash held at the balance 
sheet date totals £1 3 million and the trustees are satisfied that the Foundation can meet ItS funding 
commitments. At the year end the foundation had restrrcted reserves of £475,903 (2015. £356,451), 
unrestricted reserves £1,678,197 (2015· £2,221,880) and total reserves of £2 154 100 (2015 
£2,578,331 ) 

The Foundation operates an ethical reserves policy as part of which It does not Invest In the tobacco 
industry 

Plans for future periods 

The chanty has ambìnous growth plans for the next five years, which are outlined In its 2013-2018 
Strategy These Include. 

The charity has ambitious growth plans for the next five years, which are outlined In ItS 2018-2020 
Strategy. These Include 

Goal 1: To Increase the level of support for patients and carers by Increasing the number of support 
groups across the UK to 70, the number of regional information days each year as well as 
offering training and bursanes for up to 30 group facilitators per year 

Goal2: To ensure all40 000 people diagnosed with lung cancer In the UK every year have access to 
the best treatment, care and support 

Goal3: To increase the funds available for patient relief grants from £50,000 to £100 000 p a In three 
years, across the UK (supporting CIrca 500 people with lung cancer) 

Goal4 To grow our annual spend on lung cancer research over the next three years 

Goal5: To educate young people via our Cut Films Project helping prevent them from starting to 
smoke. 

Statement of trustees' responsibilities 

The trustees (who are also directors of The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation for the purposes of 
company law) are responsible for prepanng the Trustees' Report and the financial statements In 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
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Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the 
incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the 
charitable group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 

make judgmenls and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

prepare the financial statements on the 'going concern' basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the charitable company will continue in business. 

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and group and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee 
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and 
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors 

The trustees who were in office on the date of approval of these financial statements have confirmed, 
as far as they are aware, that there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware. 
Each of the trustees have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as 
trustees in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it 
has been communicated to the auditors. 

Auditors 

RSM UK Audit LLP 
14,h Floor, 20 Chapel Street, liverpool, L3 gAG 

The auditors have indicated their willingness to continue in office. 

Staff 

We would like to pay tribute to the staff of the Foundation who continue to show considerable 
enthusiasm and commitment. 

Partners and supporters 

We would like to record a sincere thanks to all our partners and supporters who have helped the Charity 
in any way this year. 

Small Company Provisions 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable for companies entitled to the 
small companies exemption. 

By order of the trustees ~ ~ S L - ( 
Max Steinberg CBE 
Chairman September 2017 

18 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ROY CASTLE LUNG CANCER 
FOUNDATION 

Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Roy Castle Lung Foundation (the 'parent 
charitable company') and its subsidiaries (the 'group') for the year ended 31 December 2016 
which comprise the Group and Parent Charitable Company Statement of Financial Activities, 
the Group and Parent Charitable Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Charitable 
Company Cash Flow Statements and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland". 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent charitable company's affairs 
as at 31 December 2016; and of the group's and the parent charitable company's incoming 
resources and application of resources, including their income and expenditure, for the year 
then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; and have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and 
regulations 6 and 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

Scope of the audit and the financial statements 
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting 
Council's website at http://www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and, based on the work undertaken 
in the course of our audit, the Trustees' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent charitable company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in 
the Trustees' Report and the incorporated Strategic Report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006, the 
Charities Act 2011 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) requires us 
to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• the parent charitable company has not kept proper and adequate accounting records, or returns 
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the parent charitable com pany financial statements are not in agreement with the 
accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
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FOUNDATION 

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities set out on page 17 the trustees 
(who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

We have been appointed auditors under section 44(1 )(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 of the Charities Act 2011 and under the Companies Act 2006 and report in 
accordance with regulations made under those Acts. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 

This report is made exclusively to the members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of 
the Companies Act 2006, and to the charitable company's trustees, as a body, in accordance with 
section 44(1 )(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulation 10 of the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and the Charities Act 2011. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members and the charitable company's 
trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the charitable company, its members as a body, and its trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Anna Spencer-Gray 
For and on behalf of RSM UK AUDIT LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
20 Chapel Street 
Liverpool 
L3 gAG 

Date: J:t ~ 2Q)l'1- 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation - Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 
December 2016 

Consolidated 

Notes 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds Total Funds 

Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Income & Endowments from: 

Donations & Legacies 11 1,378,860 368,770 1,747,630 2,437,678 
Charitable activities 12 349,918 81,321 431,239 678,271 
Other trading activities 13 2,391,241 2,391,241 2,295,697 
Investments 14 109,397 109,397 115,494 
Other 15 116,111 116,111 116,853 

Total income 4,345,527 450,091 4,795,618 5,643,993 

Expenditure on: 

Raising funds 16 2,583,016 12,993 2,596,009 2,406,573 
Charitable activities 17 2,425,704 317,646 2,743,350 2,739,710 

Total expenditure 5,008,720 330,639 5,339,359 5,146,283 

Net gains on investments 22 119,511 119,511 821 

Net (expenditure)/income (543,682) 119,452 (424,230) 498,531 

Net movement in funds (543,682) 119,452 (424,230) 498,531 

Reconciliation of funds:- 

Total funds brought forward 2,221,879 356,451 2,578,330 2,079,799 

Total funds carried forward 1,678,197 475,903 2,154,100 2,578,330 

All gains and losses recognised in the year are ineluded above. 

All activities derive from continuing operations 

The notes on pages 29 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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December 2016 

Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds Total Funds 
Notes Funds Funds 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Donations & Legacies 11 1,534,754 364,282 1,899,036 2,262,530 
Charitable activities 12 1,324 44,928 46,252 14,076 
Other trading activities 13 406,211 406,211 420,919 
Investments 14 109,425 109,425 268,272 
Other 15 116,111 116,111 116,324 

Total income 2,167,825 409,210 2,577,035 3,082,121 

Expenditure on: 

Raising funds 16 768,368 768,368 727,577 
Charitable activities 17 2,292,177 315,146 2,607,323 1,894,654 

Total expenditure 3,060,545 315,146 3,375,691 2,622,231 

Net gains on investments 22 119,511 119,511 821 

Net (expenditure)/income (773,209) 94,064 (679,145) 460,711 

Net movement in funds (773,209) 94,064 (679,145) 460,711 

Reconciliation of funds:- 

Total funds brought forward 2,302,217 345,765 2,647,982 2,187,271 

Total funds carried forward 1,529,008 439,829 1,96B,837 2,647,982 

All activities derive from continuing operations 
All gains and losses recognised in the year are included above. 

The notes on pages 29 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation - Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2016 

Notes 2016 2015 
£ £ 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 26 237,434 349,970 
Investments held as fixed assets 27 1,259,051 964,562 

Total fixed assets 1,496,485 1,314,532 

Current assets 
Stocks 29 78,785 97,506 
Debtors 30 520,174 490,097 
Investments held as current assets 31 78,161 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,267,195 1,866,271 

Total current assets 1,866,154 2,532,035 

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 32 (1,208,539) (1,238,938) 

Net current assets 657,615 1,293,097 

Total assets less current liabilities 2,154,100 2,607,629 

Creditors: amounts falling due after 
more than one year 33 (29,298) 

The total net assets of the charity 2,154,100 2,578,331 

The total net assets of the charity are funded by the funds of the charity, as follows: 
Restricted funds 
Restricted Revenue Funds 39 475,903 356,451 

Unrestricted Funds 

Unrestricted Revenue Funds 39 1,765,721 2,325,815 
1,765,721 2,325,815 

Non-charitable trading funds (87,524) (103,935) 

Total charity funds 2,154,100 2,578,331 

The Trustees have prepared the group accounts in accordance with section 398 of the Companies Act 
2006 and section 44 of the Charities and Trustess Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 
The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies 
Act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts. 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions in Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 
applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime. 
A~d cg ~e ~ard of ~~ on 7-7 ( ~ ! 2-0 17 and signed on their behalf by: 

MAX STEINBERG CBE 
Trustee 

The notes on pages 29 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Roy Castle Lung Foundation - Charity Only Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2016 

Notes 2016 2015 
£ £ 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 26 82,997 140,993 
Investments held as fixed assets 27 1,388,648 1,094,162 

Total fixed assets 1,471,645 1,235,155 

Current assets 
Stocks 29 6,670 13,241 
Debtors 30 747,355 983,244 
Investments held as current assets 31 78,161 
Cash at bank and in hand 829,648 1,531,671 

Total current assets 1,583,673 2,606,317 

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 32 (1,086,481 ) (1,193,490) 

Net current assets 497,192 1,412,827 

Total assets less current Iíabl/tiies 1,968,837 2,647,982 

Creditors: amounts falling due after 
more than one year 33 

The total net assets of the chalrty 1,968,837 2,647,982 

The total net assets of the chairty are funded by the funds of the charity, as follows:- 

Restricted funds 
Restricted Revenue Funds 38 439,829 345,765 

Unrestricted Funds 
Unrestricted Revenue Funds 38 1,529,008 2,302,217 

1,529,008 2,302,217 

Total charity funds 1,968,837 2,647,982 

The Trustees have prepared the group accounts in accordance with section 398 of the Companies Act 
2006 and section 44 of the Charities and Trustess Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 
The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies 
Act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts. 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions in Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 
applicable to companies subject to the small ìompanies regime. 
~d ~C~oard ~ ¿rusters on 2 ì 't {~17 and signed on their behalf by: 

MAX STEINBERG CSE 
Trustee 

The notes attached on pages 29 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2016 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities as shown on 
page 26 (545,381) 1,227,999 

Cash flows (rom investing activities 
Interest received 2,971 5,744 
Dividends received 37,583 35,273 
Other investment income, including rents from investments 68,843 74,477 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (41,932) (102,138) 
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets 53,819 
Proceeds from sales of investments 101,920 121,524 
Purchase of investments (276,899) (125,185) 

Net cash (used In)/provided by investing activities (53,695) 9,695 

Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivelents (599,076) 1,237,694 

Cash movements 
Change in cash and cash equivalents from activities in the 
year ended 31 December 2016 (599,076) 1,237,694 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2016 1,866,271 518,577 

Cash at bank and in hand at 31 December 1,267,195 1,756,271 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2016 - Continued 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities 

Net income shown in the Statement of Financial Activities (424,230) 498,531 

100,649 78,150 
(119,511) (815) 
(109,397) (115,494) 
78,161 (3,050) 
18,721 (8,124) 
(30,077) 710,134 
(59,697) 178,667 

(545,381) 1,337,999 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

1,267,195 1,866,271 

1,267,195 1,866,271 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation charges 
Net change on investment assets 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 
Decrease/(Increase) in current asset investments 
Decrease/(Increase) in stocks 
(Increase )/decrease in debtors 
(Decrease)/increase in creditors 

Net cash (used ¡n)/provided by operating activities 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand at for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Total cash and cash equivalents 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Charity Only Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities as shown on 
page 28 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

(649,659) 959,795 

2,971 5,744 
37,611 35,273 
68,843 184,477 
(21,878) (44,649) 
35,064 

101,916 121,524 
(276,899) (125,184) 

(52,372) 177,185 

(702,031) 1,136,980 

Cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities 

Cash flows (used in) /from investing activities 
Interest received 
Dividends received 
Other investment income, including rents from investments 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets 
Proceeds from sales of investments 
Purchase of investments 

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities 

Overall cash (used in)/provided by all activities 

Cash movements 
Change in cash and cash equivalents from activities in the 
year ended 31 December 2016 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2016 
(702,023) 

1,531,671 

1,136,980 

394,691 

Cash at bank and in hand at 31 December 829,648 1,531,671 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Charity Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2016 - Continued 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities 

Net income shown in the Statement of Financial Activities (679,145) 460,711 

Adjustments for ;- 
Depreciation charges 44,810 36,599 
Net change on investment assets (119,511) (821) 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (109,425) (225,494) 
Decrease/(Increase) in current asset investments 78,161 (3,050) 
Decrease in stocks 6,571 4,412 
Decrease in debtors 235,889 396,480 
(Decrease )/increase in creditors (107,009) 290,958 

Net cash (used by)/provided by operating activities (649,659) 959,795 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2016 2015 
£ £ 

Cash in hand at for the year ended 31 December 2016 829,648 1,531,671 

Total cash and cash equivalents 829,648 1,531,671 
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Roy Castle lung Cancer Foundation Company No: 3059425 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Accounting policies 

Policies relating to the production of the accounts. 

Basis of preparation and accounting convention 
These consolidated accounts have been prepared on the accrual basis, under the historical cost convention, 
and in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) and the Companies Act 2006. 

Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS102. 

The registered office and principal place of business is 4-6 Enterprise Way, Wavertree Technology Park, 
Liverpool, L 13 1 FS. 
The Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) and balance sheet consolidate the financial statements of the 
Charity and its subsidiary undertakings. The results, assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries are 
consolidated on a line by line basis. 
The accounts are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. Monetary amounts in 
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £. 

Control of members of the group and transfer of funds 
The parent charity has concluded that control exists over its subsidiaires for the following reasons: 
They are either a wholly owned subsidiary with directors appointed by the Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation or a charity and company limited by guarentee and controlled by trustees 
appointed bv the Rov Castle Luno Cancer Foundation. 

Legal Status 

The Charity is a company limited by guarantee has no share capital and is governed by its Memorandum 
and Articles of Association. The liability of each member in the event of winding up is £10. The company is 
registered as a charity with both the Charity Commission and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator. 

Going Concern 
The Group and Charity produces an annual budget and has a fully casted strategy until 2020, after reviewing 
the Charity's strategic forecasts and projections, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The group therefore 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial statements. 
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Policies relating to categories of income and income recognition. 

Accounting for deferred income and income received in advance 

Where terms and conditions relating to income have not been met or uncertainty exists as to whether the 
charity can meet any terms or conditions otherwise within its control, income is not recognised but is 
deferred as a liability until it is probable that the terms or conditions imposed can be met. 
Any grant that is subject to performance-related conditions received in advance of delivering the goods and 
services required by that condition, or is subject to unmet conditions wholly outside the control of the 
recipient charity, is accounted for as a liability and shown on the balance sheet as deferred income. Deferred 
income is released to income in the reporting period in which the performance-related or other conditions 
that limit recognition are met. 

When income from a grant or donation has not been recognised due to the conditions applying to the gift not 
being wholly within the control of the recipient charity, it is disclosed as a contingent asset if receipt of the 
grant or donation is probable once those conditions are met. 

Where time related conditions are imposed or implied by a funder, then the income is apportioned to the 
time periods concerned,and, where applicable, is accounted for as a liability and shown on the balance 
sheet as deferred income. When grants are received in advance of the expenditure on the activity funded by 
them, but there are no specific time related conditions, then the income is not deferred. 

Any condition that allows for the recovery by the donor of any unexpended part of a grant does not prevent 
recognition of the income concerned, but a liability to any repayment is recognised when repayment 
becomes probable. 

Income from legacies 

Income from legacies is recognised when the charity has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left to them, 
that where required, probate has been granted, the executor is satisfied that the property in question will not 
be required to satisfy claims in the estate, that it is probable that the amount will be received by the charity, 
and the amount to be received can be estimated with sufficient accuracy, and that any conditions attached to 
the legacy are either within the control of the charity or have been met. 

Where a payment is received from an estate or is notified as receivable by the executors after the reporting 
date and before the accounts are authorised for issue but it is clear that the payment had been agreed by 
the executors prior to the end of the reporting period, then the amount concerned is treated as an adjusting 
event and accrued as income in the accounting period if receipt is probable. 

Where the charity has established entitlement to a legacy but there is uncertainty as to the amount of the 
payment, details of the legacy aredisclosed as a contingent asset until the criteria for income recognition are 
met. Where a legacy is subject to the interest of a life tenant, the legacy is not recognised as income until 
the death of the life tenant. 
Where there is any doubt that full settlement of a legacy debtor will be received, then an adjustment is made 
to reduce the amount of the legacy debtor and legacy income rather than charging the adjustment as 
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

Donated goods, facilities and services 

Donated fixed assets are recognised at the current fair value. All such donations are recognised as donation 
income, and debited to fixed assets. 

Donated goods that are not fixed assets are accounted for at a fair value, unless it is impractical to reliably 
measure the value of the donated items. 

It is deemed impracticable to measure the fair value of goods donated for resale and that costs of valuation 
outweigh the benefits, as a consequence the value of donated goods are recognised as income when sold. 
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Donated services and facìlities (including seconded staff and use of property) are included in the accounts 
on the basis of the value of the gift to the charity. 

All donated services and facilities are recognised as donation income when received (provided the value of 
the gift can be measured reliably) and recognised as an expense with an equivalent value. 

lottery Income Policy Lottery income is recognised on an accruals basis, the timing of the accounting of 
the income being determined by the date of the lottery game played. 

Policies relating to expenditure on goods and services provided to the charity. 

Recognition of liabilities and expenditure 

A liability, and the related expenditure, is recognised when a legal or constructive obligation exists as a result 
of a past event, and when it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in 
settlement, and when the amount of the obligation can be measured or reliably estimated. 

Liabilities arising from future funding commitments and constructive obligations, including performance 
related grants, where the timing or the amount of the future expenditure required to settle the obligation are 
uncertain, give rise to a provision in the accounts, which is reviewed at the accounting year end. The 
provision is increased to reflect any increases in liabilities, and is decreased by the utilisation of any 
provision within the period, and reversed if any provision is no longer required. These movements are 
charged or credited to the respective funds and activities to which the provision relates. 

Allocating costs to activities 

Direct costs that are specifically related to an activity are allocated to that activity. Shared direct costs and 
support costs are apportioned between activities. 

The basis for apportionment, which is consistently applied, and proportionate to the circumstances, is :- 

Direct Staff Cost - Directly allocated on the basis of time spent in connection with any particular activity. 
Indirect Staffing - on a per capita basis, based on the number of of people employed within any partiular 
activity. Indirect staff costs are allocated as follows: 

'Directors and CEO, estimated time spent on operational activities 
'Finance, estimated time spent on governance and remaining costs allocated on number of full-time 
equivalent (FTE) staff 
'HR, allocated on number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff excluding research staff 
'Office services and IT, allocated on number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff 
Premises related costs - on a per capita basis, based on the number of people employed within any 
partiular activity. 
Non specific support costs - on a per capita basis, based on the number of people employed within any 
partiular activity. 

Estimation techniques used in apportioning costs are based on FTE time spent on activities. 
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Volunteers 

In accordance with the SORP, and in recognition of the difficulties in placing a monetary value on the 
contribution from volunteers, the contribution of volunteers is not included within the income of the charity. 
However, the trustees value the significant contribution made to the activities of the charity by unpaid 
volunteers and this is described more fully in Note 7 and the strategic report. 

Policies relating to assets, liabilities and provisions and other matters. 

Fixed Asset Investments 

Fixed asset investments in quoted shares, traded bonds, investment properties and similar investments are 
shown initially at cost upon acquisition and at their market value at the balance sheet date at the end of the 
financial period. Investment properties are not depreciated. 
Fixed asset investments in unlisted equities are shown at the balance sheet date at the best estimate of their 
market value, where practicable. Where valuation techniques are considered unreliable or where, in the 
opinion of the trustees, the costs outweigh the benefits to the users of the accounts, the investment is 
included at cost, and a review is undertaken at each year end as to whether the asset should be written 
down. 
All gains on fixed asset investments. whether realised or unrealised, are included in the Statement of 
Financial Activities. 

Tangible fixed assets 
Fixed assets costing more than £500 are capitalised and valued at historic cost except for items individually 
below threshold but included in a project whose overall cost is greater than £500. 

The Charity sublets a portion of its head office, however the fair value of the investment property component 
cannot be measured reliably without undue cost or effort, as such the entire property is accounted for as 
property within tangible fixed assets. 

Tangible fixed assets are measured at their original cost value, or subsequent revaluation. Cost value 
includes all costs expended in bringing the asset into its intended working condition. 

Depreciation has been provided at the following rates in order to write off the assets to their 
anticipated residual value over their estimated useful lives. 

Leasehold premises 
Fixtures and Fittings 
Research, office and computer equipment 

over the length of the lease 
over the length of the lease 
between 10% and 25% 

Accounting for capital grants and fixed asset funds 

Gifts of tangible fixed assets or grants of a capital nature, given for the purposes of acquiring specific assets 
to be fully utilised in the furtherance of the objects of the charity, are credited to fixed asset funds after the 
donated asset has been received or sums have been properly expended on the restricted purpose. 

Where the terms of the gift require the charity to hold the asset on an ongoing basis for a specific purpose, 
then the fixed asset fund so created is calegorised as a restricted fixed assel fund. 
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Where the terms of the gift are met once the asset is acquired, so allowing the charity to use the asset on an 
unrestricted basis, including the right to receive the proceeds of any future sale of the asset on an 
unrestricted basis, then the fixed asset fund so created is categorised as a designated fixed asset fund. 

When assets are acquired for the furtherance of the charity's objects, utilising the charity's own unrestricted 
funds, a transfer is made from unrestricted funds to a designated fixed asset fund. 

Whether acquired with unrestricted or restricted funds, the asset acquired is initially shown in the balance 
sheet at the full cost of acquisition or subsequent revaluation. 

As the related assets are depreciated, in accordance with the depreciation policy,in order to reflect the 
dimunition in the asset,a transfer is made from the relevant fixed asset funds to either unrestricted or 
restricted revenue funds, as appropriate to the terms of the original gift, if any. 

The effect of this policy is that the aggregate of all fixed asset funds shall equate to the net book value of 
fixed assets. 

In the first year that this policy was adopted, a transfer to fixed asset funds was made equivalent to the net 
book value of the assets. 

Stocks and work in progress 
Stock consists of purchased goods for resale. Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Donated items sourced from both individuals and organisations are not included in the financial 
statements until they are sold. 

Debtors 
Debtors are measured at their recoverable amounts at the balance sheet date. 

Creditors and provisions 
Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting 
from a past event that will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the 
amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and 
provisions are normally recognised at Iheir Iransaction amount. 

Financial instruments including cash and bank balances 
The charity only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial 
instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently 
measured at Iheir settlement value with the exception of bank loans which are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective inlerest method. Cash held by the charity is included at the amount 
actually held and counted at the year end. Bank balances, whether in credit or overdrawn, are shown atlhe 
amounts properly reconciled to the bank statements. 
All financial asseis and liabililies are measured at fair value. 

Foreign currencies 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the profit and loss account. 

leasing and hire purchase contracts and commitments 

Asseis held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, which are those where substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have passed to the company, are capitalised in Ihe balance 
sheet and depreciated over their useful lives. The corresponding lease or hire purchase obligalion is trealed 
in the balance sheet as a liability. 

The interest element of the rental obligations is charged to the profit and toss account over the period of the 
lease and represents 8 constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding. 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the lease term. 
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Pensions - defined contribution schemes 

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are charged to the profit and 
loss account as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.The assets of the scheme 
are held separately from those of the company. 

Charitable commitments 

Commitments that are legally binding on the trustees are accounted for as a resource expended in the 
SOFA Where the intention of financial support is not binding on the trustees, such intentions are not 
accrued for but are disclosed separately in a note to the accounts 

Branch Offices 
The Charity carries out some activities through offices that use the same name as the Charity, raise funds 
for the Charity and receive support from the Charity through advice and publicity materials. All transactions 
are accounted for gross in the accounts and all assets and liabilities are included in the Charity's balance 
sheet. 

Consolidation 

Roy Castle Retail Ltd (Company number 03604677) is wholly owned by the Roy Castle Lung Cancer 
Foundation and is consolidated in these accounts on a line by line basis. 

Roy Castle Trading Ltd (Company number 03909935) is wholly owned by the Roy Castle Lung Cancer 
Foundation and is consolidated in these accounts on a line by line basis. 

Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd (Company number 05748774) is wholly owned by the Roy Castle Lung Cancer 
Foundation and is consolidated in these accounts on a line by line basis. 

Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd (Company number 01125191) is wholly owned by the Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation and is consolidated in these accounts on a line by line basis. 

Cut Films Project Ltd (Company number 06848267) and its wholly owned subsidiary Cut Films Limited 
(Company number 07313137) is controlled by the Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation and is consolidated 
in these accounts on a line by line basis. 

2 Critical accounting estimates and Judgements 

In the application of the charity's accounting policies, the trustees are required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 
The trustees believe that estimates and assumptions do not have a significant risk of causing amterial 
difference to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
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3 Liability to taxation 

As a registered charity, the organisation is exempt from income and corporation tax to the extent that its 
income and gains are applied towards the charitable objects of Ihe charity and for no other purpose. 
Value Added Tax is not recoverable by the charily, and is therefore included in Ihe relevant costs in the 
Slatement of Financial Activities. 

Value Added Tax is recoverable by Roy Castle Retail Ltd, Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd and CuI Films Ltd, il is 
therefore not reported or included in the costs or income figures of these companies or consolidated into the 
crouo accounts. 

4 Winding up or dissolution of the charity 

If upon winding up or dissolution of the charity there remain any assets, after the satisfaction of all debts and 
liabilities, the assets represented by the accumulated fund shall be transferred to some other charitable body 
or bodies having similar objects to the charity. 

5 Net (expenditure)/lncome before tax in the financial year 
2016 2015 

£ £ 

The net (expenditure)/income before tax in the finanical year is stated after 
charging:- 

Depreciation of owned fixed assets 
Depreciation of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase conlracts 
Pension costs 
Operaling leases 

100,649 69,318 
8,832 

34,516 
625,999 

65,967 
682,032 

Exceptional costs included in the charily only stalement of financial activities of £474,844 (2015: £nil) was in 
relation to the write off of intercompany balances. 

Fees payable to the charity's auditor: 

For audit services 
Audit of the financial statements of the group and charity 18,254 12,927 

18,254 12,927 

2,000 1,500 
8,000 

10,000 1,500 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

911 911 
573 3,185 

1,484 4,096 

For other services 
Taxation compliance services 
All other non-audit services 

6 Interest payable 

Loan interest 
Bank interest payable 
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7 The contribution of volunteers 

The Charity has significant support from volunteers in ali our activities. Currently we have 511 
volunteers registered with us, and they regularly support us in the Foundations' shops, 
smoking cessation service, administration and in fundraising. In total volunteers contribute an 
estimated fifty thousand hours per year which is the equivalent to over 28 full-time employees. 

The charity does not recognise in financial terms in the accounts the valuable contribution of 
our volunteers 

8 Staff costs and emoluments 

Salary costs 2016 2015 
£ £ 

2,625,943 2,246,184 
172.655 156,345 
65,967 34,516 

2,864,565 2,437,045 

Gross Salaries 
Employer's National Insurance for ali staff 
Employer's operating costs of defined contribution pension schemes 

Total salaries, wages and related costs 

The average number of staff deployed in different activities in the year was:- 

Engaged on charitable activities 
Engaged on fundraising activities 
Engaged on management and administration 
Engaged on retail activities 

2016 2015 
29 35 
21 18 
17 18 
76 69 

143 140 
The estimated full time equivalent number of all staff funded; Including 
external research staff 2016 - 19 (2015. 19) 

The average number of staff in charity only in the year was 52 (2015: 46). 

36 



Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation Company No: 3059425 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 

The charity has no seconded and third party staff during the account period. 

The number of employees whose emoluments including taxable benefits but excluding 
employer's pension contributions fall into the following bands were :. 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

£60,001 to £70,000 
£70,001 to £80,000 

Chief Executive Officerl Highest paid employee 
2016 

£ 
2015 

£ 

The remuneration in the year was 
Pension contributions paid by the employer 

67,000 
3,350 

60,000 
3,000 

Total remuneration package included in total salaries above 70,350 __ 63~,0_0_0 

9 Defined contribution pension schemes 

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for empioyees. The assets of the scheme are 
heid separately from those of the company. The company's share of the annual contributions payable are 
charged to the profit and loss account: 

There are not any liabilites and assets associated with the scheme. 2016 
£ 

65,967 

2015 
£ 

34,516 The cost of pension charged for the year (as per note 8) 

10 Remuneration and payments to Trustees and persons connected with them 

No trustees or persons connected with them received any remuneration from the charity, or any related 
enlity. 
Trustees were reimbursed expenses incured which amounted to £2,070 in 2016 (2015 : £1,571) in relation to 
travel expenses. 
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11 Donations and Legacies - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Donations and gifts from individuals 

Challenge Events 5,500 
Donations 19,262 19,262 27,249 
Employee Fundraising 10,221 10,221 25,751 
Individual Giving 280,739 694 281,433 248,760 
Payroll Giving 113,275 113,275 117,344 
Balance sheet value of Cut Films - 
donated on 11712015 45,790 

Total donations and gifts from individuals 423,497 694 424,191 470,394 

Legacies receivable 

Legacies receivable 526,459 526,459 1,203,637 

Total legacies receivable 526,459 526,459 1,203,637 

Revenue grants and donations from non public bodies 

Corporate Grants 73,698 1,500 75,198 109,895 
Corporate Events 7,272 7,272 
Trusts 61,815 43,075 104,890 109,526 

Total private sector revenue grants 142,785 44,575 187,360 219,421 

Sponsorship 

Events 822 
Pause for Hope 1,032 1,032 1,377 
Sponsorship 3,498 322,469 325,967 290,211 
Total sponsorship income 3,498 323,501 326,999 292,410 

In Memoriam 

In Memoriam 
190,492 190,492 153,630 

Total In Memoriam 
190,492 190,492 153,630 

Gift Aid on Donations 

Gift Aid on Donations 92,129 92,129 98,186 

Total Gift Aid on Donations 
92,129 92,129 98,186 

Total Donations and Legacies - Consolidated 1,378,860 368,770 1,747,630 2,437,678 

Of the 2015 income, £2,098,159 was unrestricted and £339,519 was restricted. 
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Donations and Legacies - Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Challenge Events 5,500 
Donations 5,040 5,040 6,390 
Employee Fundraising 10,221 10,221 25,751 
Individual Giving 280,739 694 281,433 245,783 
Payroll Giving 113,273 113,273 117,344 

Total donations and gifts from individuals 409,273 694 409,967 400,768 

Legacies receivable 

Legacies receivable 526,459 526,459 1,203,637 

Total legacies receivable 526,459 526,459 1,203,637 

Revenue grants and donations from non public bodies 

Corporate Grants 73,698 1,500 75,198 83,821 
Corporate Events 7,272 7,272 23,137 
Trusts 58,515 43,075 101,590 110,148 

Total private sector revenue grants 139,485 44,575 184,060 217,106 

Sponsorship 

Events 822 
Pause for Hope 1,032 1,032 1,377 
Sponsorships (8,669) 317,981 309,312 264,614 

Total sponsorship income (8,669) 319,013 310,344 266,813 

In Memoriam 

In Memoriam 184,397 184,397 149,415 

Total In Memoriam 184,397 184,397 149,415 

Gift Aid on Donations 

Gift Aid on Donations 283,809 283,809 24,791 

Total Gift Aid on Donations 283,809 283,809 24,791 

Total Donations and Legacies - Consolidated 1,534,754 364,282 1,899,036 2,262,530 
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12 Total Income from charitable activities - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
£ £ £ £ 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
Income from charitable trading 
Ancillary trading in support of charitable objects 6,245 6,245 16,805 
Letting of property for charitable purposes 15,458 15,458 5,365 

21,703 21,703 22,170 
Total Charitable income from funders 
SLA smoking cessation service provision - Liverpool 
CC 326,147 36,393 362,540 574,869 
U can awareness campaign 11,600 
Prospect monies 40,000 40,000 
Contractual payments for Cut Films 64,906 

326,147 76,393 402,540 651,375 
Reimbursement 
Minor reimbursed expenses and honoraria 2,068 4,928 6,996 4,726 

2,068 4,928 6,996 4,726 

Total from charitable activities 349,918 81,321 431,239 678,271 

Of the 2015 income, £666.671 was unrestricted and £11,600 was restricted. 

Total Income from charitable activities - Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
£ £ £ £ 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
Total Charitable income from funders 
SLA smoking cessation service provision - Liverpool 
CC 
U can awareness campaign 11,600 
Prospect monies 40,000 40,000 
Contractual payments for Cut Films 

40,000 40,000 11,600 
Reimbursement 
Minor reimbursed expenses and honoraria 1,324 4,928 6,252 2,476 

1,324 4,928 6,252 2,476 

Total from charitable activities 1,324 44,928 46,252 14,076 
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13 Income from other, non charitable, trading activities - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

2016 2016 2016 2015 

Trading activities to raise funds for the charity 273,440 273,440 256,101 
Income from fundraising events 502,283 502,283 588,580 
Income from the sale of donated and brought in goods 1,521,700 1,521,700 1,332,758 
Sponsorships and social lotteries which cannot be 
considered pure donations 93,818 93,818 118,258 

Total from other activities 2,391,241 2,391,241 2,295,697 

All of the 2015 income was unrestricted. 

Income from other, non charitable, trading activities - Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Trading activities to raise funds for the charity 125 125 207 
Income from fundraising events 314,795 314,795 305,006 
Sponsorships and social lolteries which cannot be 
considered pure donations 91,291 91,291 115,706 

Total from other activities 406,211 406,211 420,919 
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14 Investment income - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Property Reniai Income 68,843 68,843 74,477 
Dividend Income 37,583 37,583 35,273 
Bank Interest Receivable 2,971 2,971 5,744 

Total investment income 109,397 109,397 115,494 

All of 2015 income was unrestricted, 

Investment income - Charity Only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Property Rental Income 68,843 68,843 74,477 
Dividend Income 37,611 37,611 35,273 
Bank Interest Receivable 2,971 2,971 5,744 
Gift Aid 152,778 

Total investment income 109,425 109,425 268,272 

15 Other income and gains - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Sundry other income 116,111 116,111 116,853 

Total other income 116,111 116,111 116,853 

All of 2015 income was unrestricted. 

Other income and gains - Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 

Sundry other income 116,111 116,111 116,324 

116,111 116,111 116,324 
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16 Expenditure on raising funds and costs of investment management - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Funds Funds Total Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Cost of fundraising activities 25,017 12,993 38,010 29,163 

Marketing & advertising of fundraising 38,298 38,298 26,161 
Costs of seeking donations,grants and legacies 371 371 272 
Cost of operating social lotteries 20,643 20,643 31,640 
Costs of staging fundraising events 149,496 149,496 169,714 
Costs of charity shop selling goods 1,712,638 1,712,638 1,560,190 
Gross wages and salaries - fundraising activities 444,226 444,226 362,870 
Temporary Staff - fundraising activities 8,673 8,673 8,465 
Other Direct Costs - Fundraising Activities 159,731 159,731 186,058 
Staff Training & Welfare - Fundraising Activities 9,692 9,692 11,702 
Travel and Subsistence - Fundraising Activities 14,231 14,231 20,338 
Total fundraising costs 2,583,016 12,993 2,596,009 2,406,573 

All of the 2015 expenditure was unrestricted. 

Expenditure on raising funds and costs of investment management· Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Funds Funds Total Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Cost of fundraising activities 19,778 19,778 22,936 
Marketing & advertising of 
fundraising 35,648 35,648 22,310 
Costs of seeking donations,grants 
and legacies 370 371 273 
Cost of operating social laiteries 20,643 20,643 31,640 
Costs of staging fundraising events 64,470 64,470 73,002 
Costs of charity shop selling goods 6 
Gross wages and salaries - 
fundraising activities 444,225 444,225 362,870 
Temporary Staff - fundraising 
activities 8,673 8,673 8,465 
Other Direct Costa- Fundraising 
Activities 151,979 151,979 175,779 
Staff Training & Weifare- 
Fundraising Activities 9,692 9,692 11,702 
Travel and Subsistence - 
Fundraising Activities 12,889 12,889 18,594 

768,368 768,368 727,577 
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17 Totai Charitabie expenditure. Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Notes Funds Funds Total Funds Funds 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
E E E E 

Totai direct spending 18 993,803 118,708 1,112,511 1,288,993 
Totai grantmaking costs 19 453,350 198,938 652,288 616,842 
Totai support costs 20 958,297 958,297 819,448 
Total Governance costs 20,254 20,254 14,427 

2,425,704 317,646 2,743,350 2,739,710 

Of the 2015 expenditure, £2,402,949 was unrestricted and £336,761 was restricted. 

Totai Charitabie expenditure· Charity oniy 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Funds Funds Total Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 

E E E E 
Totai direct spending 18 486,153 116,208 602,361 459,171 
Total grantmaking costs 19 453,350 198,938 652,288 616,842 
Total support costs 20 1,343,712 1,343,712 812,641 
Totai Governance costs 8,962 8,962 6,000 

2,292,177 315,146 2,607,323 1,894,654 
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18 Expenditure on charitable activities· Direct spending· Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Gross wages and salaries 529,374 116,208 645,582 784,672 
Employers' NI 16,579 
Temporary staff 1,980 1,980 16,040 

Travel and Subsistence 47,733 47,733 51,271 

Marketing and advertising of charitable services 36,248 36,248 52,332 
Entertaining 3,222 3,222 1,206 
Other Direct Costs 370,946 2,500 373,446 358,307 
Staff Training & Welfare (563) (563) 3,424 
Subscriptions 853 853 1,208 
Telephone, fax and internet 4,010 4,010 3,579 
Other Personnel Costs 375 

Total direct spending 17 993,803 118,708 1,112,511 1,288,993 

Expenditure on charitable actívlttes - Direct spending· Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Gross wages and salaries 
Employers' NI 140,366 116,208 256,574 207,097 
Temporary staff 1,980 1,980 2,540 
Travel and Subsistence 29,798 29,798 23,09B 
Marketing and advertising of charitable services 37,743 37,743 51,043 
Entertaining 4,245 4,245 1,219 
Other Direct Costs 270,740 270,740 171,696 
Staff Training & Welfare 120 120 B45 
Subscriptions 158 158 213 
Telephone, fax and internet 1,003 1,003 1,420 

Total direct spending 17 486,153 116,208 602,361 459,171 

19 Expenditure on charitable activities· Grant funding of activities· Consolidated and charity 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Grants made to individuals 73,725 73,725 58,333 
Grants made to organisations 19.a 348,601 198,938 547,539 531,757 
Gross wages and saìartes- grantmaking activities 31,024 31,024 26,752 

Total grantmaking costs 17 453,350 198,938 652,288 616,842 
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19.a Breakdown of Grants to organisations 

University of Liverpool 
University College London 
University of Nottingham 
Kings College London 
University of Nottingham 
University of Liverpool 
St James Hospital 
Dublin, SI James Hosplital 
University of Sterling 
Sheffield University 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 
£ £ £ 

208,000 118,700 326,700 

13,341 7,613 20,954 
95,448 54,471 149,919 
15,908 9,078 24,986 

15,904 9,076 24,980 

348,601 198,938 547,539 

Total 
Funds 
2015 
£ 

250,000 
61,626 
50,000 
70,500 

24,640 

25,000 
24,994 
24,997 

531,757 

46 



Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 

20 Support costs for charitable activities 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds 

2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Employee costs not included In direct costs 
Salarles - Administrative staff 556,845 556,845 476,200 
Temporary staff and recruitment 4,160 4,160 6,431 
Training and welfare - staff 8,688 8,688 16,931 
Travel and subsistence - staff 12,658 12,658 10,574 
Child care for staff 468 468 (17) 
Entertaining 1,110 1,110 787 

Volunteer costs 
Travel and subsistence - volunteers 48 48 600 

Premises Expenses 
Rent payable under operating leases 109,332 109,332 79,660 
Service charges payable 
Rates and water charges (27,533) (27,533) 855 
Light heat and power 27,974 27,974 13,050 
Cleaning and waste management 10,706 10,706 6,095 
Premises repairs, renewals and 32,029 32,029 20,671 

Administrative overheads 
Telephone, fax and internet 8,266 8,266 4,393 
Postage 7,990 7,990 7,306 
Stationery and printing 12,510 12,510 21,757 
Courier Services (100) 
Membership subscriptions 7,758 7,758 10,527 
Software licences and expenses 17,464 17,464 12,897 
Advertising and marketing 1,645 1,645 (19,105) 
Liabilty and contents insurance 2,168 2,168 3,150 
Equipment,repairs,expenses and maintenance 2,802 2,802 6,445 
Resource costs 
Licences & Permits 133 133 133 
Other Direct Costs 25,880 25,880 1,447· 

Professional fees paid to advisors other than the auditor or examiner 
Consultancy fees 14,028 14,028 24,232 
Management fees (2,496) (2,496) (2,704) 
Other legal and professional 20,285 20,285 12,212 
Other Legal and Professional Fees 8,054 8,054 19,127 

Financial costs 
Bank charges 771 771 3,648 
Loan interest 911 911 911 
Depreciation & Amortisation in total for 
the period 89,787 89,787 78,150 

Hire Purchase interest 3,283 3,283 
Bank interest payable 573 573 3,185 

Total support costs 17 958,297 958,297 819,448 
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Support costs for charitable activities - Charity only 

Unrestricted Restricted 
Notes Funds 

2016 
£ 

Funds 
2016 
£ 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

Total 
Funds 
2015 
£ 

Employee costs not included in direct costs 
Salaries - Administrative staff 556,845 556,845 476,200 
Temporary staff and recruitment 4,160 4,160 6,431 
Training and welfare - staff 8,688 8,688 16,931 
Travel and subsistence - staff 12,657 12,657 10,574 
Child care for staff 467 467 (17) 
Entertaining 1,110 1,110 787 

Volunteer costs 
Travel and subsistence - volunteers 48 48 600 

Premises Expenses 
Rent payable under operating leases 90,829 90,829 79,660 
Rates and water charges (27,710) (27,710) 855 
Light heat and power 26,480 26,480 13,050 
Cleaning and waste management 10,289 10,289 6,095 
Premises repairs, renewals and maintenance 31,897 31,897 20,671 

Administrative overheads 
Telephone, fax and internet 3,122 3,122 3,668 
Postage 7,990 7,990 7,269 
Stationery and printing 12,510 12,510 21,629 
Membership subscriptions 7,758 7,758 10,527 
Software licences and expenses 17,465 17,465 12,857 
Advertising and marketing 1,645 1,645 (19,105) 
Liabilty and contents insurance 2,168 2,168 3,150 
Equipment,repairs,expenses and maintenance 2,802 2,802 6,445 
Licences & Permits 133 133 133 
Bad debts 474,854 474,854 
Other Direct Costs 18,325 18,325 1,447 

Professional fees paid to advisors other than the auditor or examiner 
Consultancy fees 14,028 14,028 24,232 
Management fees (2,496) (2,496) (2,704) 
Other legal and professional 19,853 19,853 12,212 
Other Legal and Professional Fees 7,638 7,638 19,106 

Financial costs 
Bank charges 577 577 3,553 
Depreciation & Amortisation in total for the period 39,007 39,007 73,200 
Hire Purchase interest 573 573 
Bank interest payable 3,185 

Total support costs 17 1,343,712 1,343,712 812,641 
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21 Other Expenditure - Governance costs 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Independent Examiner's fees 1,600 1,600 1,631 
Taxation Services 2,000 2,000 1,500 
Auditor's fees 16,654 16,654 11,296 

Total Governance costs 20,254 20,254 14,427 

Other Expenditure - Governance costs - Charity only 

U n restricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Independent Examiner's fees 
Taxation Services 
Auditor's fees 8,962 8,962 6,000 

Total Governance costs 8,962 8,962 6,000 
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22 Investment gains 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

Realised (Iosses)/gains 

Listed investments (12,593) (12,593) 8,366 

Total realised (Iosses)/galns (12,593) (12,593) 8,366 

Unrealised gains /(Iosses) 

Listed investments - Unrealised 132,104 132,104 (7,545) 

Total unrealised gains/(Iosses) etc 132,104 132,104 (7,545) 

Total realised and unrealised gains 119,511 119,511 821 

All the gains on investments in 2015 was unrestricted. 

23 Taxation 

Gift aid donations of £263,826 in relation to the subsidiary companies was received in the charity only. 
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24 Analysis of income by activity 

Activity analysis of Consolidated Income and expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Activity 

Income from charitable 
Research 
Prevention 

Total Income from charitable 
activities 

Income from other, non charitable, trading activities 
Fundraising activities 
Sales of donated and related goods 

Total Income from other, non 
charitable, trading activities 

Categories of income 
Income from non exchange transactions 
Income from exchange transactions 

Total income as shown in the SOFA 

25 Analysis of charitable expenditure by activity 

Activity 
Direct costs Support 

costs 

2016 2016 
£ £ 

Research 
Direct costs 
Employee costs not included in 
direct costs 
Volunteer costs 
Premises expenses 
Administrative overheads 
Professional fees 
Financial costs 
Grantmaking costs 

252,436 

245,865 
20 

64,214 
36,469 
16,788 
40,137 

Total Research 252,436 403,493 

2016 
£ 

2015 
£ 

6,996 4,725 
424,243 673,546 

431,239 678,271 

869,541 964,235 
1,521,700 1,331,462 

2,391,241 2,295,697 

2,733,282 
2,062,336 

4,795,618 

Grant 
funding of 
activities 

2016 
£ 

578,963 

3,300,766 
2,343,227 

5,643,993 

Total Total 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

252,436 221,637 

245,865 211,408 
20 248 

64,214 49,793 
36,469 19,870 
16,788 21,872 
40,137 35,503 

578,963 571,205 

578,963 1,234,892 1,131,536 
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Direct costs Support Grant 

costs funding of Total Total 
activities 

2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Support 
Direct costs 349,926 349,926 271,738 
Employee costs not included in 
direct costs 61,466 61,466 52,851 
Volunteer costs 5 5 62 
Premises expenses 16,054 16,054 12,448 
Administratíve overheads 9,117 9,117 4,969 
Professional fees 4,197 4,197 5,468 
Financial costs 10,034 10,034 8,875 
Grantmaking costs 73,325 73,325 59,753 

Total Support 349,926 100,873 73,325 524,124 416,164 

Direct costs Support Grant 
costs funding of Total Total 

activities 
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Prevention 
Direct costs 510,149 510,149 694,274 
Employee costs not included in 
direct costs 276,599 276,599 111,424 
Volunteer costs 23 23 
Premises expenses 72,241 72,241 26,243 
Administrative overheads 41,028 41,028 10,860 
Professional fees 18,887 18,887 11,531 
Financial costs 45,153 45,153 18,889 

Total Prevention 510,149 453,931 964,080 873,221 

Summary of charitable costs by 
activity 

Direct costs Support Grant 
costs funding of Total Total 

activities 
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Total Research 252,436 403,493 578,963 1,234,892 1,131,536 
Total Support 349,926 100,873 73,325 524,124 416,164 
Total Prevention 510,149 453,931 964,080 873,221 

1,112,511 958,297 652,288 2,723,096 2,420,921 

The basis of allocation of costs between activities is described under accounting policies 
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Activity analysis of Consolidated Income and expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2016 

The breakdown of this expenditure by type of spending (ie nominal classification) is detailed in note 17. 

Analysis of support and governance costs by charitable activities 

Governance Finance Human Other Total 
Activity Resources Overheads 
Research 7,484 40,137 245,885 109,987 403,493 
Support 4,216 10,034 61,471 25,152 100,873 
Prevention 8,554 45,153 276,622 123,602 453,931 

Grand Total 20,254 95,324 583,978 258,741 958,297 

Analysis of non charitable expenditure by activity 

Activity 

Fundraising activities 

Total non charitable expenditure 

Fundraising Fundraising 
activities activities 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

2,596,009 2,406,573 

2,596,009 2,406,573 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

2,596,009 2,406,573 

2,596,009 2,406,573 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

Direct fundraising costs 

Total costs of Fundraising activities 

Total costs of Fundraising activities 

Total non charitable expenditure 

Analysis of income by activity - Charity only 

Activity 
Income from charitable activities 
Research 
Prevention 

Income from other, non charitable, trading activities 
Fundraising activities 
Sales of donated and related Goods 

46,252 14,076 

46,252 14,076 

406,211 420,919 

406,211 420,919 

2,421,358 2,799,773 
155,677 282,348 

2,577,035 3,082,121 

Total Income from charitable activities 

Total Income from other, non charitable, trading activities 

Categories of income 
Income from non exchange transactions 
Income from exchange transactions 
Total income as shown In the SOFA 
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Activity analysis of Consolidated Income and expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2016 
Analysis of charitable expenditure by actìvlty - Charity only 

Activity 
Grant 

Support funding of 
Direct costs costs activities Total Total 

2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Research 
Direct costs 252,437 252,437 221,637 
Employee costs not included in dirE 245,864 245,864 215,118 
Volunteer costs 20 20 253 
Premises expenses 55,488 55,488 50,666 
Administrative overheads 231,062 231,062 20,219 
Professional fees 16,431 16,431 22,251 
Financial costs 16.908 16,908 33,658 
Grantmaking costs 578,963 578,963 571,205 

Total Research 252,437 565,773 578,963 1,397,173 1,135,007 

Grant 
Support funding of 

Direct costs costs activities Total Total 
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Support 
Direct costs 349,925 349,925 271,738 
Employee costs not included in 
direct costs 61,466 61,466 53,780 
Volunteer costs 5 5 63 
Premises expenses 13,872 13,872 12,666 
Administrative overheads 57,765 57,765 5,055 
Professional fees 4,108 4,108 5,563 
Financial costs 4,227 4,227 8,414 
Grantmaking costs 73,325 73,325 59,753 

Total Support 349,925 141,443 73,325 564,693 417,032 
Grant 

Support funding of 
Direct costs costs activities Total Total 

2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Prevention 
Direct costs 
Employee costs not included in 
direct costs 276,598 276,598 242,008 
Volunteer costs 23 23 284 
Premises expenses 62,424 62,424 56,999 
Administrative overheads 259,944 259,944 22,747 
Professional fees 18,485 18,485 25,032 
Financial costs 19,022 19,022 37,865 

Total Prevention 636,496 636,496 384,935 
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Activity analysis of Consolidated Income and expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2016 
Summary of charitable costs by activity - Charity only 

Grant 
Support funding of 

Direct costs costs activities Total Total 
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ £ 

Total Research 252,437 565,773 578,963 1,397,173 1,135,007 
Total Support 349,925 141,443 73,325 564,693 417,032 
Total Prevention 636,496 636,496 384,935 

Total charitable expenditure 602,362 1,343,712 652,288 2,598,362 1,936,974 

The basis of allocation of costs between activities is described under accounting policies 

The breakdown of this expenditure by type of spending (ie nominal classification) is detailed in note 17. 

Analysis of support and governance costs by charitable activities - Charity only 

Governance Finance Human Other Total 
Activity Resources Overheads 

Research 3,316 16,908 61,471 484,078 565,773 
Support 1,882 4,227 61,471 73,863 141,443 
Prevention 3,764 19,022 276,621 337,089 636,496 

Grand Total 8,962 40,157 399,563 895,030 1,343,712 

Analysis of non charitable expenditure by Fundraising Fundraising 
activity- Charity Only activities activities 

2016 2015 
Fundraising activities £ £ 

Direct fundraising costs 768,369 727,577 

Total costs of Fundraising activities 768,369 727,577 

Total non charitable expenditure 2016 2015 
£ £ 

Total costs of Fundraising activities 768,369 727,577 

Total non charitable expenditure 768,369 727,577 
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26 Tangible fixed assets 

Research 
leasehold 

Fixtures & office and Group Land and computer 
Buildings Fittings equipment Total 

Group 
£ £ £ £ 

Cost 
At 1 January 2016 821.466 251,079 593,561 1,666,106 
Additions 4,104 1,563 36,265 41,932 
Disposals (69,645) (69,645) 

At 31 December 2016 825,570 252,642 560,181 1,638,393 

Depreciation 
At 1 January 2016 743,797 139,305 433,034 1,316,136 
Charge for the year 29,279 22,614 48,756 100,649 
On disposals (15,826) (15,826) 

At 31 December 2016 773,076 161,919 465,964 1,400,959 

Net book value 

At 31 December 2016 52,494 90,723 94,217 237,434 

At 31 December 2015 77,669 111,774 160,527 349,970 

Research 
Leasehold Fixtures & office and Charity land and computer 
Buildings Fittings 

equipment Total 

Charity Only 
£ £ £ £ 

Cost 
At 1 January 2016 143,975 16,545 321,244 481,764 
Additions 21,878 21,878 
Disposals (46.430) (46,430) 

At 31 December 2016 143,975 16,545 296,692 457,212 

Depreciation 
At 1 January 2016 103,129 16,545 221,097 340,??1 
Charge for the year 14,217 30,593 44,810 
On disposals (11,366) (11,366) 

At 31 December 2016 117,346 16,545 240,324 374,215 

Net book value 
At 31 December 2016 26,629 56,368 82,997 

At 31 December 2015 40,846 100,147 140,993 

Group - Net book value of plant, machinery and vehicles held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 
included above: 

2016 
£ 

2015 
£ 

30,228 Total of assets held under finance leases 
Depreciation charged for assets held under finance leases during 2016 was £nil (2015: £8,832). 

Charity Only - There are no finance leases in the Charity 
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27 Investments held as fixed assets by the Parent Company 

Investments In Listed Other 
undertakings Investments Classes of Total 

Investments 
£ £ £ £ 

Carrying values of investments 

At 1 January 2016 129,600 964,562 1,094,162 
Additions 276,899 276,899 
Revaluation at 31 December 2016 127,348 127,348 
Impairment (3) (3) 
Disposals (109,758) (109,758) 

At 31 December 2016 129,597 1,259,051 1,388,648 

The investment in the subsidiary companies Roy Castle Clean Air Limited £2 (2015: £nil) and Cut Films Limited 
£1 (2015: £nil) were impaired in the year. 

Analysis between historical cost and revaluation based on market value 

Investments as above historical cost 129,597 1,259,051 1,388,648 
129597 1,259051 1,388,648 

Analysis of types of investments: 
Cash 
Listed investments 

82,411 
1,176,640 
1,259,051 

Analysis of investments in subsiduary undertakIngs by the Parent Company, The Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation 

Loans to group undertakings 
Equity investment in group undertakings 

Included at Included at historical market Total cost, less value write down 
£ £ £ 

129,592 129,592 
5 5 

129,597 129,597 

8 8 
(3) (3) 
5 5 

Analysis of equIty investments: 
Investments cost 
Impairment 

The company holds 20% or more of the share capital 01 the following companies: 
CapItal & 

Company Shares held Profit (loss) Reserves 
Class % 

The Cut Films Projects Ltd by guarantee (75, (68) (38,651) 
Cut Films (96.436) (143,122) 
Roy Castle Patient Support Ordinary 100 (22) 10,666 
Roy Castle Retail Ordinary 100 144.439 192,982 
Roy Castle Trading Ordinary 100 92,273 137,039 
Roy Castle Clean Air Ordinary 100 (18,573) (184,576) 
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28 Subsidiary companies 

The Charity has four wholly owned subsidiaries: 
Three trading subsidiaries 

Roy Castle Retail Ltd "Company number: 03604677, 
Roy Castle Trading Ltd - Company number: 03909935, 
Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd - Company number: 05748774 

One subsidiary charity 
Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd" Company number: 06149309 - Charity number: 1125191 (formerly known as 

Roy Castle Patient Care Ltd). 

Principle Activites 
Retail Charity Shops 
Charity and Charitable Events 
Provision of stop smoking services 

The charity has one subsidiary charity limited by guarantee which it controls via appointed trustees 
The Cut Films Project Ltd which itself has a separate trading subsidiary Cut Films Ltd which provides youth 
smoking awareness programmes. An independent exam has been carried out on Cut Films Projects Ltd. 

Where liability is limited by shareholding the amount of the holding company's investment in each subsidiary is 
£2, which represents 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of each subsidiary. In all cases the subsidiary is 
controlled by the holding company by virtue of the power to appoint directors to the board of the subsidiary. 

All companies are incorporated in England and Wales and are exempt from audit. 

The subsidiary's activities relate to those of the holding company in that the subsidiary is a trading enterprise 
engaging in trades similar to the charitable activities of the holding company, and donates its entire taxable 
trading profit to the holding company by way of gift aid. 

A summary of the financial statements of the subsidiaries is :- 

Profit and Loss 
Turnover net of VAT 
Expenses net of VAT 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

982,927 1,029,451 
(1,008,589) (1,101,641) 

(25,662) (72,190) 

2,482,447 2,632,108 
(2,431,740) (2,488,785) 

50,707 143,323 

(4,194) (911 ) 
(263,826) (152,778) 

(217,313) (10,366) 

Assets and Funds 
Aggregate amount of assets 
Aggregate amounts of liabilities 
Aggregate amount of funds 

Net profit for the year before tax 

Interest Paid 
Gift Aid Payments made to holding company 

Net Joss for the year after tax and gift aid 

Note 2016 
£ 

2015 
£ 

Funds retained within charitable subsidiaries 
39 ___ 3_6..:..,,0_7_6 10...:...,6_8_8 

The income and expenditure of the Cut Films project are included in the consolidated accounts 
from the date of the acquisition, the income and expenditure of it are similarly included 
in the consolidated accounts. The charity took control of the Cut Films Project on the 1 st July 2015. 

Amounts owing to and from the subsidiary are shown in the notes relating to creditors and debtors. 
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Group 

29 Stock 2016 
£ 

2015 
£ 

Charity Only 
2016 

£ 
2015 

£ 

Stocks 78,785 97,506 6,670 13,241 

78,785 97,506 6,670 13,241 

Costs of stock included in the statement of financial activities amounted to £166,030 (2015: £113,360). 

Analysis of the value of stock by activity 

Group Charity Only 
2016 2015 2016 2015 

£ £ £ £ 

6,670 13,241 6,670 13,241 
72,115 84,265 
78,785 97,506 6,670 13,241 

Group Charity Only 
2016 2015 2016 2015 

£ £ £ £ 
81,725 153,574 43,079 71,469 

426,805 708,420 
373,195 289,421 236,453 156,259 
65,254 47,102 41,018 47,096 

520,174 490,097 747,355 983,244 

Activity 
Fundraising activities 
Stocks for Sales of donated and related Goods 

30 Debtors 

Trade debtors 
Amounts owed by group undertakings and 
undertakings in which the company has a 
participating interest 
Prepayments and accrued income 
Other debtors 

The intercompany balances of £474,841 (2015: £nil) have been impaired in Charity only. 

31 Investments held as current assets at market value at 31 December 2016 

Group and Charity 
2016 2015 

£ £ 

78,161 

Group Charity Only 
2016 2015 2016 2015 

£ £ £ £ 

193,148 156,178 103,350 117,705 
204,217 199,416 103,131 71,616 

67,569 161,752 
24,475 36,435 23,289 30,663 

786,699 846,909 789,142 811,754 

1,208,539 1,238,938 1,086,481 1,193,490 

Cash on deposit - more than 3 months notice 

32 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Trade creditors 
Accruals 
Amounts owed to group undertakings and 
undertakings in which the company has a 
participating interest 
PAYE, NIC VAT and other taxes 
Other creditors 

The is a debenture in place dated 11 April 2001 in Roy Castle Retail Limited over leasehold property of the 
company by Barclays Bank pic. 
There is a cross guarentee between Roy Castle Retail Limited and Roy Castle Lung Foundation. 
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33 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 
Group 

2016 2015 
Charity Only 
2016 

£ 
2015 

£ 
Finance lease and HP contracts 29,298 

29,298 
The finance lease was secured on the assets financed by Ihe finance lease only. 

34 Group Financial commitments under finance leases 
2016 2015 
£ £ 

8,293 
21,005 

within one year 
over one year 

29,298 

35 Charitable commitments not recognised as provisions or commitments in the accounts 

The charity operates an open grants process for Research Grants, some grant applications extend beyond one 
year, however the charity has an annual review policy for grants that extend beyond one year, with the ability to 
terminate the grant should it not meet it's objectives. Grant costs are accrued into the accounts upto the review 
date of each grant as this forms the contractual obligation. 

There is therefore £800,000 (2015: £500,000) of awards that are contingent on the grants meeting thier criteria 
that would then fall accross the next two subsiquent years accounts. 

2016 2015 
£ £ 

At the year end the group had total outstanding commitments under non 
cancellable operating leases as set out below: 

Operating leases which expire: 
within one year 
within two to five years 
in over five years 

587,087 
1,032,019 
257,800 

560,000 
1,244,000 

91,000 

1,876,906 1,895,000 

36 Related party transactions 
The senior management team as identified in the Trustees Annual Report received a total of £373,000 in salaries 
(2015: £371,000). 

Balances held with subsidiary companies of Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 
in the year were as follows: 2016 2015 

£ £ 
426.805 708,420 
(67,569) (161.752) 
474,844 

911 911 

Included in debtors: 
Included in creditors: 
Intercompany balances: 
Interest charged on balances: 

37 Related party transactions with Trustees 
David Maples who is a member of the Board of Trustees is also a partner in Brabners, one of the firms of 
solicitors the Foundation uses. Brabners is primarily used for employment law issues an area David has no 
involvement in. either for Brabners or the Foundation. In the year transactions took place of £4.824 (2015: 
£8.000) with Branbers. No amount was due at year end. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 

38 Particulars of how particular funds are represented by assets and liabilities 

Group Unrestricted Restricted Total 
At 31 December 2016 funds funds Funds 

£ £ £ 
Tangible Fixed Assets 237.434 237,434 
Investments at valuation:- 
Fixed asset investments 1,259,051 1,259,051 

Current Assets 1,390,251 475,903 1,866,154 
Current Liabilities (1,208,539) (1,208,539) 
long Term Liabilities 

1,678,197 475,903 2,154,100 

Charity Unrestricted Restricted Total 
At 31 December 2016 funds funds Funds 

£ £ £ 
Tangible Fixed Assets 82,997 82,997 
Investments at valuation:- 
Fixed asset investments 1.388.648 1,388,648 

Current Assets 1,143,844 439,829 1,583,673 
Current liabilities (1,086,481 ) (1,086,481 ) 
long Term Liabilities 

1,529,008 439,829 1,968,837 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 

39 Change in total funds over the year as shown in Note 38 , analysed by individual funds 

Group Funds Income Expenditure Funds 
brought carried 

forward 2016 forward 
2016 

£ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted and designated tunäst- 
Charity Unrestricted Funds 
Unrestricted revenue funds 2,325,814 4,448,627 (5,008,720) 1,765,721 
Trading Subsidiary Funds 
non-charitable trading funds (103,935) 16,411 (87,524) 

Total unrestricted and designated funds 2,221,879 4,465,038 (5,008, 720~ 1,678,197 
Charity Restricted Funds 
Sundry ReF Restricted Reserves 33,003 102,480 (93,603) 41,880 
Prospect Law 40,000 (8,175) 31,825 
GLee 298,876 266,730 (198,938) 366,668 
Boehringer Ingleheim Awareness Project 13,884 (14,430) (546) 
Subidiary Restricted Funds 
Re Patient Support Restricted Reserves 10,688 40,881 (15,493) 36,076 

T otal restricted funds 356,451 450,091 (330,639) 475,903 

Total Group Funds 2,578,330 4,915,129 (5,339,359) 2,154,100 
Restricted Funds 
Boehringer Ingleheim Awareness Project To fund lung cancer awareness for individuals 
Re Patient Support Restricted Reserves To fund lung cancer patient support for individuals 
Sundry ReF Restricted Reserves To fund lung cancer research for individuals 
GLee To fund lung cancer research for individuals 

Charity only Funds Income Expenditure Funds 
brought carried 

forward 2016 forward 
2016 

£ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted and designated funds:- 

Unrestricted revenue funds 2,302,217 2,287,336 (3,060,545) 1,529,008 

Total unrestricted and designated funds 2,302,217 2,287,336 p,060,545) 1,529,008 

ReF Restricted îunds:- 
Research - GLee 298,876 266,730 (198,938) 366,668 
LeiSS Facilitator 1,513 1,900 (2,735) 678 
BI Awareness Programme 14,430 (14,430) 
Prospect Law 40,000 (8,175) 31,825 
Research - others 30,946 100,580 (90,868) 40,658 

Total restricted funds 345,765 409,210 (315,146~ 439,829 

Total Charity Funds 2,647,982 2,696,546 (3,375,691 ) 1,968,837 
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 
40 Change in total funds over the year 

Income Expenditure Gains & Movement 
Losses in funds 

Group 2016 2016 2016 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted and designated funds:- 
Unrestricted revenue funds 4,345,527 (5,OOB,720) 119.511 (543,682) 

Restricted funds:- 
Restricted Reserves 450.091 (330,639) 119,452 

4,795,618 (5,339,359) 119,511 {424,230) 

41 The purposes for which the funds as detailed in note 39 are held by the charity are» 

Unrestricted and designated 
funds:- 

Unrestricted revenue funds 
These funds are held for the meeting the general objectives of the 
charity. and to provide reserves for future activities, and, subject to 
charity leqlslation, are free from all restrictions on their use. 

Restricted funds:- 

Sundry RCF Restricted Reserves 

These funds are held for meeting specific objectives of the charity as 
specified by the donor. and to provide reserves for future suitable 
activities subject to charity legislation and subject to the restrictions 
placed on them by individual donors 
These funds are held for meeting specific objectives of the charity as 
specified by the donor. and to provide reserves for future suitable 
activities subject to charity legislation and subject to the restrictions 
placed on them by individual donors 

GLCC 

Carrying amount of financial assets 
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 
Financial instruments measured at fair value 

Carrying amount of financialliabiJities 
Measured at amortised cost 

Group Charity 
2016 2015 2016 2015 
£ £ £ £ 

244,B86 200,676 608,809 826.985 
1.259,051 964,562 1.388,648 1,094.162 

1.184,064 1,202.503 1.063,192 1,162,827 

42 Financial instruments 

43 Ultimate controlling party 

The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation is the ulitmate controlling party and is under the control of its legal 
members. 
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